
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
To: 

 
Members of the  
RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 Councillor Michael Rutherford (Chairman) 
Councillor Suraj Sharma (Vice-Chairman) 

 Councillors Gareth Allatt, Yvonne Bear, Julian Benington, Kim Botting FRSA, 
Josh King, Alexa Michael and Gary Stevens 
 
 

  
 Non-Voting Co-opted Members 
 Tajana Reeves, Bromley Youth Council 

 

 
 A special meeting of the Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development  

and Scrutiny Committee will be held at Bromley Civic Centre on  
TUESDAY 11 FEBRUARY 2020 AT 6.30 PM  

 
  

MARK BOWEN 
Director of Corporate Services 
 

 

Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from 
 http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/ 

 

PART 1 AGENDA 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contact details are shown on each 
report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting. 
 

 STANDARD ITEMS 
 

1    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  
 

2    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

3   QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
ATTENDING THE MEETING  
 

 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions that are not specific to reports 
on the agenda must have been received in writing 10 working days before the date of 
the meeting. 

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH 
 
TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333  CONTACT: Lisa Thornley 

   Lisa.Thornley@bromley.gov.uk 

    

DIRECT LINE: 020 8461 7566   

FAX: 020 8290 0608  DATE: 3 February 2020 

http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/


 
 

 

 
Questions specifically relating to reports on the agenda should be received within two 
working days of the normal publication date of the agenda.  Please ensure that 
questions specifically relating to reports on the agenda are received by the Democratic 
Services Team by 5 pm on Wednesday 5 February 2020. 
 

a    QUESTIONS FOR THE RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER  
 

b    QUESTIONS FOR THE CHAIRMAN OF RENEWAL, RECREATION AND 
HOUSING PDS COMMITTEE  
 

4    PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF EXECUTIVE REPORTS  
 

a    CONTRACT AWARD: PROVISION OF HOUSING SUPPLY IN ANERLEY AND 
CHISLEHURST (Pages 3 - 10) 
 

b    CRYSTAL PALACE PARK (Pages 11 - 18) 
 

 PART 2 (CLOSED) AGENDA 
 

5   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
(ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) ORDER 2006, AND THE FREEDOM 
OF INFORMATION ACT 2000  
 

 The Chairman to move that the Press and public be excluded during consideration of 
the items of business listed below as it is likely in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the Press and public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information. 
 

Items of Business Schedule 12A Description 

6    PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF PART 2 (EXEMPT) EXECUTIVE REPORTS  
 

a    CONTRACT AWARD: PROVISION OF 
HOUSING SUPPLY IN ANERLEY AND 
CHISLEHURST (Pages 19 - 26) 
 

Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs 
of any particular person 
(including the authority 
holding that information)  

  



  

1 

Report No. 
DRR20/019a 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: EXECUTIVE   
 
For pre decision scrutiny by the Renewal, Recreation and Housing 
Policy, Development and scrutiny Committee on 11 February 2020 

Date:  12 February 2020          

Decision Type: Non Urgent  
 

Executive Key  

Title: CONTRACT AWARD: PROVISION OF HOUSING SUPPLY IN 
ANERLEY AND CHISLEHURST 

Contact Officer: Alicia Munday, Head of Regeneration 
Tel: 020 8313 4559    E-mail:  Alicia.Munday@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Lydia Lee, Assistant Director, Culture & Regeneration 
 

Ward: Crystal Palace, Chislehurst 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1 This report, together with the accompanying Part 2 report, sets out recommendations for the 
award of contract, following a tender process through a compliant framework (LHC NH2), for the 
design and build of off-site housing construction for the provision of temporary accommodation 
across two sites: Bushell Way, Chislehurst; and Anerley Town Hall Overflow Car Park.    

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 The Renewal, Recreation and Housing PDS Committee are asked to note and comment 
on the recommendations of the Part 1 and Part 2 reports, prior to Executive decision. 

2.2 Executive are recommended to:  

i) Approve Contract Award, as detailed in the accompanying Part 2 report, for the Design 
and Build (subject to Planning Permission) of the two schemes.  

 
.  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4a



  

2 

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:  Further Details 
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council Supporting Independence:  
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Detailed in Part 2 report 
 

2. Ongoing costs:  Detailed in Part 2 report 
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Capital Programme £8.4m 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: N/A 
 

5. Source of funding: Housing Investment Fund earmarked reserve 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):  
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:         
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement:  
 

2. Call-in: Applicable:   
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  
 

Summary of Ward Councillor’s comments:  A meeting with Ward Councillors has been held in 
relation to these recommendations.  Ward Members have requested that public engagement is 
conducted.  It was confirmed with Ward Members that this is the start of the process, and 
should these recommendations be approved, this would enable a provider to be selected to 
propose more detailed plans which would then commence the public engagement process.   
 
Statutory Public Consultation will take place if a planning submission is made.  
 

 

Page 4



  

3 

3.  BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In May 2019 (Report No. DRR19/025) Executive approved recommendations 

to bring forward the development of two Council owned sites (Bushell Way, 
Chislehurst and Anerley Overflow Car Park) for housing developments.  
Appendix 1 provides detail on site locations.  

 
3.2 It was agreed that Officers would utilise an off-site housing construction 

framework, managed by LHC, to procure a housing development on each site 
to increase capacity of temporary accommodation in the Borough and 
alleviate demand pressures. 

  
3.3 The earlier report set out the rationale for utilising the LHC framework and off-

site housing construction.  The use of the framework has offered the 
opportunity to engage with pre-qualified  manufacturers; reduce procurement 
timescales; as well as, obtain value for money through scale of business that 
is countrywide and beyond any scale the Council is likely to achieve alone. 
 

3.4 The tender documentation included a scope of works, and requested that 
tenderers  demonstrate their commitment to the following principles, as 
agreed by the Executive in May 2019: 

 Developments in line with the Local Plan and that are sympathetic to 
the local surroundings; 

 Housing that meets the London Housing Standards, or as close to; 

 Housing that is efficient and sustainable; 

 A range of 1 and 2 bedroom apartments. 
 

3.4 Playle & Partners  were appointed to act as Quantity Surveyors and Clerk of 
Works on behalf of the Council for these schemes, and have supported the 
production of the tender documentation in conjunction with Amey. 
 

4. TENDER PROCESS 
 
4.1 The tender was undertaken using the LHC framework as this contains a 

number of different workstreams within the framework. Officers decided to 
utilise workstream 4, Band 1 of the NH2 Framework which allows for projects 
where a majority of site will be less than 25 dwellings.  Officers rational for 
utilising this band of workstream 4 is due to concerns that Planning would be 
unlikely to be granted above this number of dwellings on either site. 

 
4.2 The mini-competition was undertaken utilising the process as outlined in the 

NH2 Framework.  All bids were evaluated on a 40% Quality and 60% Price 
basis. 

 
  

Page 5



  

4 

Criteria  

Financial Resources and Contract Affordability 10% 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 

4
0

%
 

Quality and Operational Compliance 25% 

Technical Ability to Deliver the Project 25% 

Health and Safety 20% 

Social Value 10% 

Sustainability, Equal Opportunities & Partnership Working 10% 

Preliminary Costs 40% 

P
ri
c
e

 

6
0

%
 

Pricing Scenario Model Based on 2 Bed, 4 Person, 2 Storey Dwelling 40% 

Pricing Scenario Model Based on 1 Bed, 2 Person, 2 Storey Dwelling 20% 

 
 
4.3 Council Officers were aware that the optimum number of dwellings would only 

be determined at the Planning stage, and introduced further financial 
weightings into the Finance evaluation, to mitigate this risk and enable a fair 
comparison of the sites.  

 
4.4 Site 1 – Bushell Way, Chislehurst 
 This site was formally occupied by the Banbury House Care Home.  The site 

is in a residential area, providing an excellent location for additional housing, 
whilst maintaining the Council’s land ownership. 

 
 Site 2 –Anerley Town Hall, Overflow Car Park 

This site is an overflow car park for Anerley Town Hall.  The car park is not 
‘Pay and Display’ and so there will be no loss of income.  The car park is 
underutilised, with adequate parking provision provided for within the main car 
park 
 

4.5 Tender Outcome: 
Utilising the LHC NH2 Framework, the Council received Expressions of 
Interest from 6 of the 7 providers within Workstream 4, Band 1. 

 
4.6 Tenderers were invited to visit both sites, prior to submitting their bids.  The 

purpose of the visits was to give tenderers an opportunity to see the locations 
as well as surrounding areas. 

 
4.7 The outcome of the tender process is detailed in the accompanying Part 2 

report. 
 

Page 6



  

5 

 
5. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
5.1 At the request of Ward Councillors, officers have met with local residents of 

Bushell Way, Chislehurst.  A FAQ document has been collated and circulated 
to residents via Ward Councillors.  This has not been requested by the 
Anerley Ward members.  

 
5.2 Residents will be fully consulted in line with Planning Policy during the 

planning process.   
 
6. IMPACT ON VULNERABLE CHILDREN AND ADULTS 
 
6.1 The proposed recommendations support vulnerable people through the 

provision of housing supply. 
 
7. POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
7.1 The Council has published a Homelessness Strategy which sets out the 

approved strategic policy in terms of homelessness.  This includes the 
provision of affordable housing and reducing the reliance on nightly paid 
accommodation.   

 
8. PROCUREMENT RULES 
 
8.1 See Part 2 report 
 
9. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 See Part 2 Report 
 
10.  LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
10.1 The Housing Act 1996, Part 7 (as amended) sets out the Council’s statutory 

homelessness duties, including the duty to provide temporary accommodation 
for certain classes of people and in certain circumstances. 

 
10.2 The Council can rely on Part 7 of the Housing Act 1996 to provide temporary 

accommodation together  with the general power of competence in section 1 
Localism Act 2011.  

 
10.3 The Council must make decisions in accordance with the law and also in 

accordance with its fiduciary duty to its tax payers in using Council resources.  
The report explains the benefits including the financial benefits that must be 
properly weighed up and considered before taking the decisions set out in the 
recommendations.  

 
10.4 The report refers to decisions made by the Executive in May 2019 which 

included approval of the site development and procurement strategy together 
with the appropriation of land for housing purposes. However the land in the 

Page 7



  

6 

registered titles for both sites is subject to restrictive covenants.  Once 
planning permission has been obtained it may be necessary to appropriate 
the land for planning purposes to engage the provisions of section 203 of the 
Housing and Planning Act 2016, in order to override easements or other rights 
to which the land is subject, if the Council has been unable to agree 
compensation payable for the diminution of any such rights enjoyed by 
neighbouring properties, including the right to light. 

 
10.5 Under the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (Regulations) the procurement of 

these works, supply and services is a public contract within the meaning of 
the Regulations. As the value exceeds the relevant threshold under the 
Regulations the Council would have needed to carry out a fully compliant EU 
Procurement exercise. The Regulations however  accept compliance where 
the Council call-off from an EU compliant framework which is expressed as 
being available to the Council and is used within the rules set up by the 
framework. The Council have procured from the LHC NH2 Framework for the 
design and build of the houses identified in the report and related Part 2 
report. The section in these reports on Procurement Rules provides further 
detail of the procurement exercise   undertaken under the framework.  

 
10.6 As these two schemes are for a 2 Stage Open book tendering procurement 

via the LHC Framework for modular homes, the recommendations are 
seeking authority to enter into Pre-Commencement  Works contracts and 
subject to Planning permission being granted the Contract Award includes the 
progression to the second stage Works contract.  It is noted that if Planning 
Permission is not granted, there is a break clause that allows Officers to 
terminate the contract.   

 
10.7 The relevant authorisation process in relation to Contract award under the 

Council’s Contract Procedure Rules for values over £1M is by way of 
Executive authorisation in agreement with the Portfolio holder, Chief Officer, 
Assistant Director Governance & Contracts, Director of Corporate Services 
and Director of Finance.   

 
10.8 The report also identifies the need to carry out the  procurement for the 

management of the houses and in due course a further report will be required 
seeking authority to commence that procurement exercise under the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules 

 
 
 
 

Non-Applicable 
Sections: 

 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

Increasing Housing Supply to Meet Housing Need 

Page 8



  

7 

Appendix 1 

Site 1 - Bushell Way, Chislehurst 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 9



  

8 

 
Site 2-Anerley Town Hall, Overflow Car Park, Anerley 

 

P
age 10



  

1 

Report No. 
DRR20/018 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: EXECUTIVE 
 

FOR PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY BY THE RRH PDS  
 

Date:  
RRH PDS: Tuesday 11 February 2020 
Executive: Wednesday 12 February 2020 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Executive  
 

Key 
 

Title: CRYSTAL PALACE PARK 
 

Contact Officer: Lydia Lee, Assistant Director Culture and Regeneration 
Tel: 01689 873 826    E-mail:  Lydia.Lee@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Assistant Director Culture and Regeneration 

Ward: Crystal Palace; 

 
1. Reason for report 

To provide a progress update on the regeneration of Crystal Palace Park, and to seek authority 
in relation to taking forward the restoration of the Crystal Palace Subway.  

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

  
That Members of the RRH PDS: -  

 
2.1  Note the contents of this report and make any comments available to the Executive.  

 
That Members of the Executive: -  

 
2.2 Note the contents of this report, namely information regarding the submission of the 

Regeneration Plan’s Outline Planning Application.  
 
2.3 Subject to obtaining the approval of Full Council, approve the addition of the Subway 

project to the Capital Programme at a cost of £3.141m on the basis of the scheme 
costs being fully funded by grants from the Strategic Investment Pot, Historic 
England, and TfL, and a contribution from the Friends of Crystal Palace Subway. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4b



  

2 

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children 

1. Summary of Impact: The Regeneration Plan will have a positive impact on vulnerable adults 
and children. The park is an unrestricted public space and leisure facility which is easily 
accessible by public transport and car.  

________________________________________________________________________________ 

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy 

2. BBB Priority: Regeneration 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: £3.141m estimated for the Crystal Palace Subway scheme  
 

2. Ongoing costs: N/A 
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: New capital programme provision for the Crystal Palace 
Subway scheme; Crystal Palace Park Alternative Management Options capital programme in 
respect of the Regeneration Plan.    

 

4. Total current budget for this head: Capital programme provision of £1.12m in respect of the 
Regeneration Plan. 

 

5. Source of funding: Crystal Palace Subway scheme: grants from the Strategic Investment Pot, 
Historic England and TfL and a contribution from the Friends of Crystal Palace Subway. 
Regeneration Plan: capital receipts  

________________________________________________________________________________ 

Personnel 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): N/A   

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:   N/A 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Non-Statutory - Government Guidance 

2. Call-in: Applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

Procurement 
 

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:  The correct procurement process has been 
undertaken to date under advice from the Head of Procurement. This report has no 
procurement considerations. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  A recent survey estimates 
that the park receives 1.4m visits each year. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Yes  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  None received however the request for comments 
was made very late by the report author. 

Page 12



  

3 

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1. The detailed background to this report is set out in report no. DRR17/029. 

3.2. At the July 2017 meeting of the Executive, progression of the Crystal Palace Park 
Regeneration Plan and the submission of the Outline Planning Application was 
approved. The report proposed that the costs would be fully met from a combination of 
capital receipts from the sale of housing land and external grants.  In January 2020 the 
Outline Planning Application was finally submitted. This report sets out the current issues 
and next steps in relation to the Crystal Palace Subway. 

Background summary 

3.3. Crystal Palace Park has been in decline for almost 100 years. From its original 
conception the park struggled with mounting costs, and just at the point where its 
fortunes were turning the Crystal Palace burnt down. The destruction of the palace was 
closely followed by the Second World War, and its historic landscape was severely 
damaged as a consequence.  

3.4. Subsequent interventions, such as the introduction of the National Sports Centre, failed 
to regenerate the park long-term, and the park is well-known for the many unsuccessful 
schemes that have been proposed over the years. The London Borough of Bromley took 
responsibility for the park in the 1980s and in the 1990s delivered a grant funded 
restoration project in part of the South of the park, focussed on the Grade I listed 
dinosaurs. Whilst successful at the time, current knowledge about the dinosaurs shows 
that a far more radical approach needs to be taken to ensure their long term future. 

3.5. In 2007 a Masterplan for the park was developed by the then London Development 
Agency (LDA). This Masterplan received planning consent in 2010, however the LDA 
never identified a route for delivery mainly because it was costed at £80m in today’s 
money. Note that this sum relates to the park’s regeneration only and not the 
development and restoration of the National Sports Centre, which was included in the 
Masterplan but costed separately. The planning consent expires later this year on the 
13th December 2020 unless reserved matters are submitted. 

3.6. In 2014 an Improvement Scheme led by LBB was agreed for the park. These works were 
largely funded by a grant and included: the restoration of the sphinxes and south terrace 
steps, dinosaur conservation and interpretation, a new skatepark, a new café, and the 
removal of hard standing and improvements to access. These works have all been 
completed and the café and skatepark have proved incredibly popular. 

3.7. In 2017 a developed Regeneration Plan for the park was presented to Members, to build 
on the momentum of the Improvement Scheme. The Regeneration Plan takes a three 
pronged approach to secure the sustainable future of the park: a capital scheme, a new 
business model and a new approach to governance. 

The Regeneration Plan 

3.8. The Regeneration Plan’s Outline Planning Application has now been submitted. The 
planning application is for the scheme as presented to committee in 2017, the only 
significant change is to the footprint of the maintenance and training building which has 
been designed by Capel Manor. 

3.9. The 2017 version identified a long thin building next to the museum for maintenance and 
training alongside the Ledrington Road site which had been identified in the 2007 
Masterplan as a new location for Capel Manor. Ledrington Road is no longer considered 

Page 13



  

4 

a suitable development site because of the significant engineering costs associated with 
building over a train line therefore this building has been removed from the plan 
completely. Instead Capel Manor has developed plans for the site next to the museum, 
with a revised footprint, complemented by proposed changes to their existing farm site.   

3.10. The significant delay to the submission of the Regeneration Plan has primarily been 
caused by differences in opinion with the Greater London Authority in relation to the 
housing sites. The housing sites – Rockhills and Sydenham Villas – have been designed 
to host 210 units. The sale of this land for housing would be ring fenced to fund the 
park’s regeneration in a mechanism known as enabling development. Surprisingly 
developing these sites for housing will actually lead to a net gain in parkland rather than 
a loss, because both sites are currently inaccessible to the general public. 

3.11. Under normal planning policy, Council owned land developed for housing, should include 
50% affordable, however in the case of enabling development the capital receipt wants to 
be maximised for the community benefit gained by restoring and regenerating the park. 
This principle was established by the 2007 Masterplan. The former Mayor of London Ken 
Livingstone, and the then Secretary of State, stated when granting permission for the 
Masterplan, that due to the special needs of Crystal Palace Park and the importance of 
maximising the proceeds from the housing sites, no element of affordable housing would 
be required. This planning permission as set out in para 3.5 is still extant.  

3.12. The cost of delivering the Regeneration Plan is now estimated at £40m, half the cost of 
the 2007 Masterplan. This includes staffing, legal and planning costs incurred by the 
Council, alongside contingency, inflation over the next five years, fees, and a park 
endowment in addition to the actual works. This estimate has increased by approximately 
£10m since the estimated costs were reported in 2017. The primary reasons for the 
increase are that quotes have been obtained for the key works and are higher than 
anticipated (particularly in relation to the terraces), further knowledge on the condition of 
the dinosaur landscape has more than doubled the likely cost of their conservation and 
the delays have also cost money both due to inflation and the continuing deterioration of 
the historic fabric. 

3.13. The value of the housing land is estimated at £24m. Given that the cost of the scheme is 
estimated at £40m it is imperative that the housing land value is maximised, to reduce 
the challenge of bridging the gap. The three main grant funding sources are the National 
Lottery Heritage Fund, the National Lottery Community Fund and Historic England. The 
Council may be able to secure in the region of £8m from these funders. Therefore a 
funding gap is currently forecast, however this will be better understood once the housing 
sites have gone to market and their value is known rather than estimated.  

3.14. Consequently LBB will continue to make the case during the planning determination 
period as to why zero affordable housing should be accepted in this instance, and has 
set out through the enabling case why very special circumstances apply.   

3.15. If all the monies to deliver the full Regeneration Plan cannot be secured the Council will 
either look at options to deliver part of the Regeneration Plan, as long as planning 
conditions in relation to the housing receipts allow, or it will not be implemented. 

3.16. The capital regeneration includes the full repair of the dinosaurs, new playgrounds, a new 
information centre, restoration of the terraces, new entrances and paths improving 
accessibility, new lighting, infrastructure repairs eg drainage, new car parks, and high 
quality horticulture. The works will transform the park and restore the historic assets, 
however they are modest. None of the grand and costly ideas of the original Masterplan 

Page 14



  

5 

are included e.g. the large new greenhouses. Importantly the works fully support the 
business model by creating new accessible spaces that can host significant events 

3.17. It should be noted, as set out in para 3.55 within report no. DRR17/029, that whilst there 
is no expectation of requesting any significant funding from the Council to bridge the 
forecast gap, it is likely that the Council will need to demonstrate an element of match 
funding for the grant bids. However, the enabling development approach allows for 
money spent by the Council to date to develop the scheme to be included in the overall 
costs that can be recovered from the housing development’s capital receipts. Therefore 
the £40m project cost of the Regeneration Plan tentatively includes a reimbursement to 
the Council of the £1.12m committed to progress to the Outline Planning Application 
stage thus far. Any match funding required would be within the £1.12m, effectively 
recycling the monies spent to date. 

3.18. Once the Outline Planning Application is approved a report will be brought to the 
Executive setting out next steps in relation to Reserved Matters, and seeking authority to 
take the housing sites to market. 

 The Crystal Palace Park Trust 

3.19. The Shadow Board has now become a constituted Trust and they are currently going 
through the process of securing charitable status. The Trust has worked closely with the 
Council to progress the Regeneration Plan to this point. 

3.20. Given the likely time period of five years to implement the Regeneration Plan following 
planning approval, the Trust is keen to look at other ways in which they can start taking a 
lead role in the park, rather than waiting for the capital scheme to be completed before 
taking their potential role as the new governing body for the park. 

3.21. Therefore officers are working with the Trust to explore the potential of the Trust taking 
responsibility for the park’s events programme within the next 18 months. Events are a 
key part of the future sustainability of the park and are identified as a primary source of 
income in the new business model. Therefore it would be a sensible step forward to 
enable the Trust to start developing a new events programme for the park. 

The Crystal Palace Subway 

3.22. As set out in report no. DRR19/058 in 2019 officers made an application to the Strategic 
Investment Pot for a grant of £2.34m to restore the Grade II* Subway. The grant 
application had at that time been recommended for approval and since then the grant 
has been confirmed, 25% of the grant monies will shortly be transferred to the Council up 
front of the work commencing.   

3.23. The total cost of restoration is estimated at £3.141m. This estimate is inclusive of all 
costs including fees, and is based on a detailed condition survey and cost plan work 
undertaken in 2014 with a prudent 48.5% inflation added due to the specialist nature of 
the structure, 10% contingency added and 5% dilapidation costs added.  

3.24. Therefore an additional £801k is forecast to be required to progress the scheme. The 
Friends of Crystal Palace Subway are contributing £5k and the Council’s Highways team 
are applying for £296k from Transport for London. The stability of the Subway is linked to 
the stability of Crystal Palace Parade and they have previously given grant monies for 
strengthening works on this site. 

3.25. The remaining £500k required is expected to be awarded by Historic England. Officers 
are engaged in detailed discussions in relation to this grant award and have been given 

Page 15



  

6 

as much certainty as is reasonable that this grant application will be successful. However 
because of the terms of their grants the grant application has to be made in two stages. 

3.26. Firstly the Council is required to go out to tender for the conservation architect-led team 
to review the current condition and produce detailed drawings as well as a specification 
for works. This has been done. Once the Council has completed the procurement 
process and is ready to award the contract, the Council can apply to Historic England for 
50% of the cost of this first phase of work. This first phase of work is expected to cost in 
the region of £250k, therefore the grant from Historic England is likely to be around 
£125k in the first instance. 

3.27. Then, once this work is completed, the Council is required to go out to tender for the 
actual works contract. Again, once the Council has completed the procurement process 
and is ready to award the works contract, the Council can apply to Historic England for a 
further grant to fund the restoration work itself. Historic England has indicated that in 
total, over the two phases, they will support a grant application of £500k. Therefore the 
second grant is likely to be in the region of £375k. 

3.28. This two phased grant process does create risk, as there is always the possibility that the 
first phase is completed, and money spent, and then the remaining grant monies needed 
for works are not fully secured. However this has already been mitigated to a degree by 
the prudent nature of the cost forecast, and other measures could be undertaken to 
reduce the costs of the works themselves. For example not reinstating the glass roof, 
which is currently debateable anyway for security and maintenance reasons, although 
the cost has been allowed for in the forecast at this time. 

3.29. Once the restoration is complete the Subway is planned to become a new cultural 
destination for South London. This use for the historic building was originally set out in 
the 2007 Masterplan and has been carried in to the Regeneration Plan. An outline 
business case was produced as part of the SIP grant application demonstrating its 
suitability for events and temporary outdoor exhibitions. The restoration will also allow the 
Council to progress the potential of engaging a commercial partner for the site, who 
would fund the cost of ancillary visitor facilities at ground level linked through to the 
Subway, creating further prospects for the site. 

4. IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN  

4.1  The Regeneration Plan, which includes the restoration of the Subway, will have a positive 
impact on vulnerable adults and children. The park is an unrestricted public space and 
leisure facility, which is easily accessible by public transport and car. 

 
4.2  The park is designed for public enjoyment and education, and includes the popular 

dinosaurs which are a unique London attraction. The Regeneration Plan will improve 
access and public enjoyment and will increase the amount of high quality freely 
accessible public land within the park. The park provides green space for many local 
families who do not have access to gardens of their own. 

 
5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The park is shown with various designations and policies in the Local Plan and the 
London Plan). There is an outline planning permission in place for the 2007 Masterplan, 
which has established the planning principles. 

 

Page 16



  

7 

5.2 The Regeneration Plan requires a separate planning consent. The approach that has 
been taken has been to submit an Outline Planning Application for the whole scheme, 
with detailed reserved matters to follow specific to the delivery phases. 

 
 

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 Regeneration Plan  

 6.1 The cost of progressing the Regeneration Plan to the submission of the outline planning 
application is funded from within the Capital Programme provision of £1.12m approved 
by the Executive on 19 July 2017 (report no. DRR17/029). This was on the basis that the 
Regeneration Plan itself would be self-financing i.e. that the total costs of the scheme 
including capital works, fees and support would in the main be met by funding generated 
from capital receipts from land sales and external grants and contributions. 

 6.2 The latest cost estimate is now £40m. However, current funding projections estimate 
capital receipts of £24m with income from grants of £8m i.e. total potential funding 
available of £32m. Whilst officers will continue to seek additional sources of funding and 
to maximise capital receipts from the land sales, options will be developed to deliver 
elements of the Regeneration Plan within the total resources generated from the Plan 
and there is no expectation for further significant Council funding, notwithstanding the 
potential requirement for an element of costs already incurred to provide match funding 
to leverage in grants. 

 6.3 Once the total funding available from capital receipts and grants has been determined, 
cost estimates will be finalised and options developed to deliver a self-financing 
Regeneration Plan. Financial modelling will also be undertaken to explore the potential 
impact of key financial risks and potential changes to any key assumptions, such as land 
values. Cash flow forecasting will also help inform the treasury management impacts 
from any short-term financing deficits. A further report will then be submitted to the 
Executive setting out those options and scheme details for approval and including in the 
Capital Programme as part of the Council’s capital strategy process. 

Crystal Palace Subway 
 
6.4 The estimated cost of the restoration is £3.141m, to potentially be funded as follows: 
 

Strategic Investment Pot  £2.340m 
Historic England grant  £0.500m 
TfL (highway works)  £0.296m 
Friends Group   £0.005m 
Total     £3.141m 

 
The Strategic Investment Pot funding is secured as reported to the Executive on 16 
October 2019 (report no. DRR19/058), with an advance of 25% expected in the near 
future. 

 
6.5 The funding application to TfL to complete the highways stability works is being 

progressed. The Historic England grant is expected to be awarded but confirmation is 
subject to the tendering and procurement process set out above. This process does 
create risk to the Council from the need to spend money in order to progress the scheme 
and the grant application which potentially will not be confirmed until after those 
commitments have been made.  

 

Page 17



  

8 

6.6 In order to progress the scheme, an addition to the Capital Programme of £3.141m is 
required on the basis that this will be fully funded by grants and contributions. At this 
stage, this will enable the Council to progress the initial stages of the project to facilitate 
the works to be grant funded by the Strategic Investment Pot and Historic England only. 
This is expected to cost £0.250m.  

 
6.7 No further costs will be committed until the outcome of the grant applications from 

Historic England and TfL have been confirmed. At that stage, a further report will be 
submitted setting out final scheme costs and sources of funding, and confirming the total 
capital programme provision.  

  

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The council has various legal powers available to hold and develop its landholdings and 
buildings including parks. 

7.2 The report provides members with an update of the regeneration of Crystal Palace Park 
Project. It also seeks an endorsement of a decision to spend monies to progress the 
restoration of the Crystal Palace Subway and to include the cost of stage one of this 
project in the Councils capital programme. 

7.3 The report notes the point reached with regard to planning and sets out various options 
and scenarios which will need to be properly appraised and developed as the project 
evolves. Officers will l need to obtain legal advice as appropriate including compliance 
with  procurement rules, Contract Procedure  Rules, grant conditions and any land and 
highways  related issues . 

Non-Applicable Sections: Personnel implications; procurement implications. 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

Crystal Palace Park: Regeneration Plan, July 2017, 
DRR17/029 
Strategic investment Pot, October 2019, DRR19/058  

 

Page 18



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 6a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	4a CONTRACT AWARD: PROVISION OF HOUSING SUPPLY IN ANERLEY AND CHISLEHURST
	4b CRYSTAL PALACE PARK
	6a CONTRACT AWARD: PROVISION OF HOUSING SUPPLY IN ANERLEY AND CHISLEHURST

